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The Cain Residence faces northwest on Alder Street in the middle of the block between 
Second and Third Streets. It is in an older residential neighborhood, not far from the 
main commercial area of Dayton. The house has a gracious front lawn and garden and four 
small maple trees along the street.

Less than one acre. 
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ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION:

The Cain Residence is"T"shape in plan, one story high and three bays wide across the front 
facade. It has a concrete foundation and is sided with horizontal tongue and groove. The 
gable roof has boxed eaves and is covered with wood shingles. The windows are one over one 
double hung sash with decorative surrounds; the centr.il front door has four lights. The 
attached front porch has a hip roof which is supported by four, turned posts. The side porch 
which does not appear to be original is supported by boxed posts. The house measures
26 f x32 f .



HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The Cain House and the Armstrong House, (Resource #6), to the north, were both owned by 
William and Elizabeth Cain in the 1890's. The Cains were from the Use of Man and came to 
the United States in 1859. They lived in Illinois for a number of years before settling in 
Dayton some time in the 1870's. Cain is listed as a farmer in the 1880 and 1900 census 
and as a hop grower in the city directories from 1903 to 1908. The Cains sold the property 
to their son, William H. Cain, in 1897.

It appears that the Cain House was built after 1893- Although the 1893 Sanborn Map shows 
a house on the property, the configuration and location of the house are at variance with 
the Cain House and the 1912 Sanborn Map. In 1909, the Cain House was sold separately from 
the Armstrong House. It appears that the Cains lived in one of the houses and rented the^ 
other from the time they purchased the property from A.L. Armstrong in 1891 until the 1910 f s 
All three of the Cains, William(1831-1910), Elizabeth (1825-1913) and William H. (1869- 
1921), are buried in the Brookside Cemetery.

SIGNIFICANCE: The Cain residence is significant as a vernacular adaptation of the 
Victorian Era building styles common to Dayton. Though it is simple in construction, 
the decorative details of the building are in good condition, and thelsttuctare 
reflects the working class housing of a previous era in Dayton. Criterion c.
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